


Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF JASPER 
Ordinance 2024- 
An Ordinance  

of Jasper County Council 
 

To provide for the levy of tax for public purposes in Jasper 
County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2024 and ending 
June 30th 2025 and to make appropriations for said purposes; to 
adopt and approve the Jasper County capital and operations 
budget for fiscal year 2024-2025, to adopt and approve the 
Jasper County School District capital and operations budget for 
fiscal year 2024–2025; to provide for the levy of taxation for 
fiscal year 2024–2025;  to limit the disbursements by the county 
treasurer to those appropriated by law; to provide that 
expenditures not exceed appropriations; to authorize tax 
anticipation notes; to make authorization of certain transfers; 
to provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to 
codify Jasper County rates and fees; to provide for lapsing funds 
and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to require 
certain agencies and departments to file accountings; to require 
the treasurer to sign general fund checks; to provide special 
rules for travel and training disbursements; to provide for 
travel reimbursements; to provide compliance with act no. 317 
of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to 
provide for county commission and committee stipends; to 
provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to 
provide for effective date of this ordinance. 

   
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Jasper County Council in council duly assembled and by the 
authority of the same: 
 
SECTION 1.  Appropriation for Jasper County Capital and General Operations 
Budget.  There is hereby appropriated from revenues to be collected from the stated 
sources the following sums for the Jasper County Capital and Operational needs and for 
the purposes set forth for fiscal year 2024 – 2025: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 7 
 

 
JASPER COUNTY  

CAPITAL AND GENERAL OPERATIONS BUDGET 
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

 
    
REVENUE  EXPENDITURES  
County Property Tax Levy $  33,465,600 Emergency Services $  18,389,423 
Local Option Sales Tax $    4,862,500 Sheriff  $    8,844,200 
Fee in Lieu  $    2,100,000 Detention Center $    4,139,000 
S.C. Local Government Fund   
Allocation 

 
$    1,350,300 

Engineering Services and 
Solid Waste 

 
$    4,250,700 

Cash Carry Forward $    4,923,052 Agency Appropriations $    2,683,079 
All Other Revenue $  12,825,550 All Other Expenditures $  21,220,600 
 
Total Revenue 

 
$  59,527,002 
 

 
Total Expenditures 

 
$ 59,527,002 

County Debt Tax Levy $    3,120,400 County Debt  $   3,120,400 
 
County Grand Total 
 

 
$  62,647,402 
 

 
County Grand Total 

 
$ 62,647,402 

 
The detailed Operations Budget containing line-by-line accounts by department and /or 
agency is hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance.  Management of individual accounts 
for the functions of elected officials shall be the responsibility of that elected official.  
 
 
SECTION 2.  Appropriation for Jasper County School District Capital and General 
Operations Budget.  There is hereby appropriated to the  
School Operations Budget the remaining non-appropriated funds collected through School 
District ad valorem taxation in Fiscal Year 2023-2024, which were in excess of School 
District funds appropriated by the FY 2023- 2024 budget ordinance. There is further hereby 
appropriated from revenues to be collected from the stated sources the following sums for 
the Jasper County School District Capital and Operational needs and for the purposes set 
forth for fiscal year 2024 - 2025: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 7 
 

JASPER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CAPITAL AND GENERAL OPERATIONS BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 
 

   REVENUES                                                         APPROPRIATIONS 
 
School Property                                  School District                                 
Operations Tax Levy $ 30,384,644        Operations Tax Levy     $ 30,384,644  
School Debt   $   6,500,878          School Debt  $   6,500,878 
School Grand Total  $ 36,885,522          School Grand Total       $ 36,885,522 
 
 
SECTION 3.  Levy. There is hereby levied upon the taxable property of Jasper County a 
sufficient number of mills by the County Council from assessment of the property therein 
which, together with fines, forfeitures and taxes collected by various tax offices and all 
income of the County shall raise the amount therein appropriated and for the purpose herein 
stated.  
 

 Millage 
County  140.00   
County Debt 12.00 
School 166.00 
School Debt 25.00 
Total Mils 343.00 

 
 

Cherry Point Fire District 31.00 
 
SECTION 4.  Disbursement by Treasurer.  The Treasurer is directed to disburse to or 
on behalf of the activities described in Sections 1 and 2 no more than the amount 
appropriated and to hold all additional revenues referred to herein and all revenues 
collected as a result of and through the levied millage, over and above the appropriations 
stated herein, in an interest bearing account of the County, pending future appropriation by 
the County Council.  In the event that the actual collection of revenue shall be less than the 
appropriations made in Section 1 or 2, then appropriations shall be reduced to a sum equal 
to the amount of revenue actually collected. 
 
SECTION 5.  Expenditures Not to Exceed Appropriations. Expenditures shall not 
exceed appropriations without the consent of the County Council.  County Council 
authorization to amend the budget shall be ratified by ordinance through a budget 
amendment. 
 
SECTION 6. Tax Anticipation Notes Authorized.   For the purpose of paying in cash 
for the foregoing and all other general ordinary County expenses for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 as authorized by this ordinance or by any other appropriation ordinance hereafter 
passed in and for said fiscal year, the County Council of Jasper County is hereby 
authorized, empowered, and directed to borrow from time to time as may be necessary on 



Page 4 of 7 
 

the official note or notes of Jasper County, or other evidence or evidences of indebtedness, 
in anticipation of the collection of the taxes herein levied, provided that all loans made 
from private persons, firms, or corporations shall not exceed $6,000,000  in the aggregate.  
Such borrowing shall be sold in such manner and upon such terms as the County 
Administrator shall deem in the best interest of Jasper County, upon the advice of the 
County’s financial advisor and counsel.  Such borrowing may take the form of a public or 
private sale, as deemed appropriate by the Administrator.  Such sum or sums so borrowed 
shall constitute a valid and prior claim against the said taxes herein levied and against 
Jasper County, and shall also be secured by a pledge of the full faith, credit, and taxing 
power of Jasper County.  The Administrator, and any other officers or staff of Jasper 
County as are deemed by the Administrator necessary or convenient to the accomplishment 
of the borrowing authorized herein, are hereby authorized to execute all agreements, 
contracts, certificates, undertakings, disclosures, and other documentation as is convenient 
or necessary to facilitate such borrowing. 
 
SECTION 7.  Authorization of Transfer of Funds.  Each department head is permitted, 
subject to the County Administrator’s (or his designee’s) approval, to transfer 
appropriation(s) between object classifications codes within that department. Transfers 
from objects 2000 through 2080 (personnel codes) are not permitted under any 
circumstances without the approval of the County Administrator.  The County 
Administrator is permitted, when it is in the best interest of the individual County 
departments or agencies, to transfer appropriations between departments (from one 
department to another department) and between the County’s General Fund, Capital 
Projects Fund and Capital Improvements Fund (from one fund to another fund up to 
$50,000.   
 
SECTION 8.  Additional Appropriations and Borrowing.   If circumstances arise 
which, in the judgment of a majority of County Council, require the expenditure of a greater 
amount than herein above enumerated then the County Administrator shall have and is 
hereby given the right by this Ordinance to transfer funds between the County’s General 
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds and may also appropriate 
available funds for a purpose not mentioned or referred to in this Ordinance, and the County 
Treasurer is authorized to borrow, if necessary, such amount as may be required to meet 
such increases or additional appropriations and may pledge the full faith and credit of 
Jasper County for the payment of the amount borrowed.  Should actual funding sources be 
greater than projected in this Ordinance, the County Administrator may revise budgeted 
revenues and expenditures or direct the increase to be held for future year’s disbursements.  
 
SECTION 9.  Jasper County Rates and Fees.  The rates and fees attached hereto that are 
not included or provided for in either South Carolina law or other Jasper County law shall 
hereby be declared to be part thereof this Ordinance and shall be followed during 
implementation of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget for Jasper County.  
 
SECTION 10.  Lapsing of Funds and Continuing Appropriations for Subsequent 
Year.  Budget appropriations of monies received by County departments and existing at 
the close of the fiscal year shall revert to the appropriate fund of the County.  Departments 
wishing to carry over appropriations into the next succeeding fiscal year must submit the 
request in writing to the County Administrator no later than August 1, 2024, for approval 



Page 5 of 7 
 

by the County Council.  These carryovers must be for specific items budgeted in the 2023 
- 2024 fiscal year for which unforeseen circumstances prevented the funds from being spent 
during the current year.  Any “excess” funds accumulated at the end of the fiscal year shall 
be used only with the approval of County Council either to fund capital assets or other 
expenditures needed by the County or placed in the appropriate reserve fund by the County 
Administrator.  Departments charged with the proper keeping and reporting of County 
accounts shall maintain both revenue and expenditure ledgers, and under no circumstances, 
except in such instances as over-payment errors, authorized transfers, or supplemental 
appropriations, shall entries except those enumerated in this Ordinance, be recorded on 
appropriations and/or expenditure ledgers.  
 
Should the County Council in any subsequent year fail to enact an appropriation ordinance 
for Jasper County, the appropriation and tax levy herein set forth shall be the appropriation 
ordinance for such subsequent year for Jasper County. 
 
SECTION 11. Agencies and Departments to File Accounting.  Agencies or departments 
receiving appropriated funds under this ordinance, at the County Council’s request, shall 
file an accounting for use of such funds.  This accounting shall be available for examination 
or inspection by the citizens of Jasper County. 
 
SECTION 12. Treasurer to Sign Checks. The Jasper County Treasurer or the Treasurer’s 
designee shall sign all general fund checks. 
 
SECTION 13.  Special Rules for Travel and Training Disbursements.  The elected 
officials, appointed officials and/or department heads who receive an annual appropriation 
for travel and training shall be required to present an itemized statement and all appropriate 
receipts for reimbursement of the same.  No official or department head shall be reimbursed 
in excess of their annual appropriation unless such expenditures are approved in advance 
by the County Administrator. 
 
SECTION 14.  Travel Reimbursements.  All Jasper County employees who have reason 
to travel outside of Jasper County on official County business shall be reimbursed for same 
with respect to the County mileage rate and the latest approved subsistence schedule both 
of which are published in the Jasper County Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual.     
All out of state travel must be approved in advance by the County Administrator. 
 
SECTION 15.  Compliance with Act No. 317 of 1990.  Section 1 of the Fiscal Year 2024–
2025 Budget Ordinance contains provisions for the rollback against County property tax 
of $3,926,400 of local option sales tax revenue for the fiscal year 2024-2025.  The 
$3,926,400 meets or exceeds the amount required as rollback in Act No. 317, 1990 Acts 
and Joint Resolutions 1822.  All other local option tax discount revenue shall become 
general fund expenditures, as budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget.  The local 
option sales tax discount factor for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 shall be .0007 which determines 
the amount of discount on individual tax bills.  The factor was determined by using the 
formula prescribed by Act No. 317, 1990 Acts and Joint Resolutions 1822. 
 
SECTION 16. Council Member Benefits.  The Council Members wishing to be on the 
County Health Insurance Plan may do so under the same guidelines as the other County 



Page 6 of 7 
 

employees.  Council Members, who do not choose to be on the County’s Health Insurance 
Plan, may be compensated with additional benefits not to exceed the value of a County 
employee’s health insurance benefit paid by the County.  Additional benefits that may be 
offered in lieu of health insurance include, but are not limited to, life insurance, dental 
insurance, existing 401K, new 401K accounts, existing IRA accounts or new IRA accounts, 
deferred compensation and credit union.  These benefits will be limited to those plans 
already in place by the County and the County Administrator will have full discretion as to 
which benefits are offered.  These benefits may not be exchanged for monetary 
compensation under any circumstances. 
 
SECTION 17.  Commission and Committee Stipends. This budget ordinance limits the 
payment of stipends to members of the Jasper County Planning Commission to one stipend 
per month in the amount of $100.00. These stipends shall be paid providing the member 
attends the scheduled meeting.  A quorum of the committees must be in attendance at the 
scheduled meeting for the stipend to be paid. The Board of Assessment Appeals and the 
Board of Zoning Appeals members will be paid an annual stipend of $500.00. 
 
SECTION 18.  Juror Mileage. The Clerk of Court is hereby authorized and required to 
reimburse jurors for mileage for each day’s attendance upon court at the current Internal 
Revenue Service published rate for mileage. 
 
SECTION 19.  Property Values Adopted. The property values established by the County 
Auditor, County Assessor and the South Carolina Department of Revenue, based on Dec. 
31, 2023, valuation are adopted and ordered implemented for tax year 2024. 
 
SECTION 20. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect on July 1, 2024. 

 
 
     

Jasper County Council  
 
     BY:  _________________________ 
       L. Martin Sauls IV, Chairman 
 
      _________________________ 
      Barbara Clark, Vice Chairman 
 
      __________________________ 
      Alvin Adkins, Councilman  
 
      __________________________ 
      John Kemp, Councilman 
 
      __________________________ 
      Coy Garbade, Councilman 
    
 
 



Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      _________________________ 
       Wanda Simmons,   
       Clerk to Council 
 
First Reading:  5/06/2024 
Second Reading:  
Public Hearings:  
Adopted:   
  
 
Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.  
      
__________________________      _______________ 
David Tedder        Date 















































 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

    Monday, March 4, 2024 

 
Officials Present: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Councilman Pastor Alvin 
Adkins, Councilman John Kemp and Councilman Coy Garbade.  
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney   
David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, Rose Dobson-Elliott, Danny Lucas and Videographer  
Jonathan Dunham.   
 
 1.  Call to Order:  
Chairman Sauls called the 5:04pm Council Meeting to order.  Prior to reading the report of compliance     
The Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act was read for the  
 records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas 
were posted and furnished to all news media and  
 persons requesting notification. 

 
2.         Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

   (1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,  
     discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or    

                 the appointment of a person to a public body – Appointed and Elected Officials’ Salaries 

 
   (2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     

                 purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
                 pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
                 privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
                 situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim – Tax Map # 087-00-05-008  
                 and Tax Map # 087-00-05-009; Ord# O-2024-Moratorium Ordinance; Telfair Commercial Tract;    
                 Soul Freedom Marketing, LLC; Rivers Reach / Settings; The Baird Audit Group LLC;  
                 Tax Map 067-00-01-067; and Tax Map #’s 087-00-05-008 and 087-00-05-009;                                     
                 Tax Map #s 048-00-01-005 and 048-00-01-007  
 

    (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
    of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
    the area served by a public body – Prospect Update; Project Refurb; Project Peaches      



 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR 
PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON 
ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 

Motion to go into executive session with the removal of duplicate tax map numbers : Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 

3:  Return to Open Session at 6:30PM 
 
Motion to return to regular session: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
Action coming out of Executive Session – There were no motions coming out of Executive Session. 
 
4.  Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation: The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by 
Vice Chairwoman Clark. 
 
5.  Approval of the Consent Agenda Items: 
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda:   Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
6.  Approval of Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve with the change that Item # 19 is amended to read Chapter 26 Taxation: Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7.  Jessica Daley – Needs Assessment Public Hearing  
 
Ms. Daley was present to address the Needs Assessment Public Hearing.  She gave a presentation and 
encouraged everyone that if they feel that they had been discriminated against, to please give them a call. 
The public hearing was opened but there were no comments, so the public hearing was closed. 
 



 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

8.  Jessica Daley – Marsh Cove Fire Substation Project Closeout Public Hearing 
 
Ms. Daley was present to address the Marsh Cove Fire Substation Project Closeout Public Hearing. She 
noted that this project would now be closed out from CDBG. The public hearing was opened but there were 
no comments, so the public hearing was closed. 
 
9.  Sheriff Hipp – Presenting information and data in reference to the Sheriff's Office accomplishment 
over the past 3 years. 
 
Sheriff Hipp prepared a summary for Council of the 2021, 2022 and 2023 accomplishments covering the 
last 3 years.  A copy of this information is attached to the minutes as “Attachment A”. 
 
10. Sheriff Hipp – Presentation by Hardeeville Police Chief Sam Woodward to present Seargeant D. Riley 
with an accommodation award.  
 
The City of Hardeeville Police Chief Sam Woodward presented Seargeant D. Riley with an accommodation 
award at this meeting.  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
11. David Tedder – Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-06 Ratifying the letter of intent for the sale of 
1.7 acres at Cypress Ridge Industrial Park. 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to represent and review this request for the consideration of this resolution  
ratifying the letter of intent for the sale of 1.7 acres at Cypress Ridge Industrial Park. 
 
Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
12. David Tedder – Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-07 Committing to Negotiate a Fee-
In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement Between Jasper County and Project Peaches; 
Identifying the Project; and Other Matters Related Thereto (Inducement Resolution) 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to represent and review this request for the consideration of this resolution   
committing to negotiate a Fee-In-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes Agreement between Jasper County 
and Project Peaches; Identifying the Project; and other matters related thereto. 
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 



 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

13. David Tedder – Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-08 Providing for Acknowledgments Regarding 
Completion of Certain Infrastructure at the Development known as The Settings At Mackay’s Point, and 
Providing for Certain Amendments to The Special Services Contract between Rivers Reach At Pocotaligo, 
LLC and Jasper County 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to represent and gave a background overview of this request for the consideration 
of this resolution providing for acknowledgments regarding completion of certain infrastructure at the 
development known as The Settings at Mackay’s Point, and providing for certain amendments to The 
Special Services Contract between Rivers Reach At Pocotaligo, LLC and Jasper County. He  
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Garbade 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
  
14. Kimberly Burgess – Resolution #R-2024-09 declaring property surplus and authorizing its disposition. 
(Ambulance Chassis) 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to represent and review this request for the consideration of this resolution   
declaring property surplus and authorizing its disposition. 
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

15. John Wall – Public hearing and 2nd reading of Ordinance #O-2024-04  Authorizing The 
Execution And Delivery Of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes And Incentive Agreement By And 
Between Jasper County, South Carolina And Project Install To Provide For Payment Of A Fee-In-
Lieu Of Taxes; Approving The Creation Of A Multicounty Park With Hampton County, South 
Carolina; Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of A Multicounty Park Agreement By And 
Between Jasper County, South Carolina And Hampton County, South Carolina; Authorizing 
Certain Infrastructure Credits And; And Other Related Matters. (Project Install) (1st reading 
02.05.2024) 
 
Mr. Wall was present to represent and review this request for consideration by Council. He noted that since 
this was the 2nd reading a public hearing had been scheduled for tonight. The public hearing was opened 
but there were no comments, so the public hearing was closed. 
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Kemp  
Second:  Councilman Adkins 



 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
16. David Tedder – Consideration of the 1st reading of an Ordinance authorizing the Execution and 
Delivery of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes and Incentive Agreement by and Between Jasper County, 
South Carolina and Project Peaches to Provide for Payment of A Fee-In-Lieu Of Taxes; Authorizing 
Certain Infrastructure Credits and; and Other Related Matters.   

Mr. Tedder was present to represent and review this request for consideration by Council.  Mr. 
Tedder noted the public hearing for this ordinance was scheduled for the first meeting in April. 
 
Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
17. David Tedder – Public hearing and consideration of the 2nd reading of Ordinance #O-2024-05 
Extending a Temporary Moratorium on Applications, Administrative Processing and Permitting for 
Approval of Large Residential Subdivisions, Major Subdivisions, Commercial Development Projects and 
Signage Within the Euhaw Broad River Planning Area and Matters Related Thereto. (1st reading 
02.26.2024)  

Mr. Tedder was present to represent and review this request for consideration by Council to extend the 
temporary moratorium that was currently in place on applications, administrative processing and 
permitting for approval of large residential subdivisions, major subdivisions, commercial development 
projects and signage within the Euhaw Broad River planning area to be extended until 07.31.2024.  
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Kemp  
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Mr. Tedder noted that the public hearing should be held before the vote. The public hearing was opened.  Mr. 
Tedder read a letter from Earl Fore for the record and Mr. Smittie Cooler spoke in person to thank Council for 
doing the moratorium. Since there were no other public hearing comments the public hearing was closed. 

18. David Tedder – Consideration of the 1st reading of an Ordinance to amend the Jasper County Code of 

Ordinances by repealing Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 6, Economic Development Alliance.  
 
Mr. Tedder was present to represent and review this request for the 1st reading of an Ordinance 
to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by repealing Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 6, 
Economic Development Alliance for consideration by Council.  He noted that Chapter 2, Article IV, 
Division 6, needed to be repealed.  
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins  
Vote:  Unanimous 



 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

The motion passed. 

19. David Tedder – Consideration of the 1st reading of an Ordinance to amend the Jasper County Code of 
Ordinances by deleting existing Chapter 26, Taxation, Article I and Article II in their entirety, and 
adopting a new Article I and Article II in their stead. (BOA) 

Mr. Tedder was present to represent, review and give an overview of this request for the 1st reading of an 
Ordinance to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by deleting existing Chapter 26, Taxation, 
Article I and Article II in their entirety, and adopting a new Article I and Article II in their stead. 
 
Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

20. David Tedder – Consideration of the 1st reading of an Ordinance to amend the Jasper County Code of 

Ordinances by repealing Chapter 28, Utilities, Articles II through IV in their entirety and replacing them 

with a new Article II. (BJWSA)  

Mr. Tedder was present to represent and review this request for consideration by Council of an Ordinance 

to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by repealing Chapter 28, Utilities, Articles II through IV in 

their entirety and replacing them with a new Article II.  
 . 
Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
21. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
Smittie Cooler signed in but did not stay for the rest of the meeting. 
Paul Dullan was present to discuss Rivers Reach. 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
22.  Administrator’s Report:   Mr. Fulghum reviewed his information from his report he had Ms. Burgess 
give an update on Finance.  She discussed the two bids for Sgt. Jasper Park for the replacement fencing. 
There were no Action Items requiring a vote from the Council in the Administrator’s Report.    
_______________________________________________________________________________________  



 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________  
CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to approve:  Councilman Garbade 
Second:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
23.  Lisa Wagner – Approval of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2024-02 to Amend the Official Zoning 
Map of Jasper County so as to transfer a property located at 951 Carolina Drive, bearing Jasper County 
Tax Map Number 067-00-01-003 from the Rural Preservation Zone to the Industrial Development Zone 
on the Jasper County Official Zoning Map. 
 
24.  Danny Lucas – Approval of the Parks & Recreation Master Plan RFP Recommendation. (Tabled at 
the 02.05.2024 meeting) 

25. Kimberly Burgess – Authorizing a $48,000.00 grant match contribution to the Jasper County 250 
Committee.  
 
26. Kimberly Burgess – Authorizing review / ratification of the emergency procurement of not to exceed 
$41,000.00 for the purchase, installation, and disposal of three industrial dryers for the Detention Center.  
 
27. Russell Wells – Authorizing the acquisition of 800 mHz public safety radio frequency maintenance 
equipment (Formerly identified as a "Communications Service Monitor") 
 
28.  Approval of the Minutes 01.16.2024: 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
29.   Council Members Comments: Councilmember Comments were given but there were no comments 
that required action. 

 
30.  Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II.  There was no need to return to the Executive Session for this meeting. For additional  
information on this meeting please visit our website for this meeting’s agenda E-Packet or for the video go 
to https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 
 
31. Adjournment: 
Motion to Adjourn:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


 
 

Minutes 
03.04.2024 

 

The meeting adjourned.  
 
Respectfully submitted:      
    
        
_______________________________________ 

Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council     ________________________________________   

          L.  Martin Sauls IV 
                                                                                             Chairman                             
 

 
 
 
 

     
           

  

















Page 2 of 4 
 

    
JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  

VIRTUAL SPECIAL CALLED  

 
 
 
 

Tuesday, March 12, 2024 
                         Minutes  

 Officials Present: Chairman L. Mar�n Sauls IV, Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Councilman Pastor  
 Alvin Adkins, and Councilman Coy Garbade.  Absent:  Councilman Kemp 
 
 Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Atorney   
 David Tedder, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
Call to Order:  
Chairman Sauls called the 6:00pm Council Mee�ng to order.  Prior to reading the report of compliance     
The Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Informa�on Act was read for the  
 records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were 
posted and furnished to all news media and persons requesting notification. 

    
Pledge of Allegiance and Invoca�on: The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invoca�on was given by Vice 
Chairwoman Clark. 

Execu�ve Session SECTION 30-4-70. 
(a) A public body may hold a mee�ng closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 

(2) Discussion of nego�a�ons incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed purchase 
or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to pending, 
threatened, or poten�al claim or other maters covered by the atorney-client privilege, 
setlement of legal claims, or the posi�on of the public agency in other adversary situa�ons 
involving the asser�on against the agency of a claim – Considera�on of Special Audit Proposal 
from The Baird Audit Group, LLC 
 

         PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES TAKEN BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 

Mo�on to go into Execu�ve Session:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The mo�on passed. 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
Return to Open Session: 
 
Mo�on to return to Regular Session:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The mo�on passed. 

   
o Ac�on coming out of Execu�ve Session 

 
 
Move to approve the terms of The Baid Audit Group’s Engagement Leter dated February 29th as a special 
audit pursuant to sec�on 4-9-150 of the Code of Laws, and authorize the Administrator, with the assistance 
of the County Atorney, to execute the leter on behalf of the County and take all necessary and desirable 
steps on behalf of Jasper County to ensure the comple�on of the audit in a �mely manner: Chairman Sauls 
Second:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  Unanimously approved by Chairman Sauls, Vice Chairwoman Clark, Councilman Adkins and Councilman 
Garbade 
The mo�on passed. 
 
Once the Council voted on the above item that came out of Execu�ve Session, Chairman Sauls said he would 
like to provide a statement on this mater.  He noted that the proposed ac�on to bring The Baird Audit Group 
to perform a special audit is to not embarrass or atack the treasurer or his staff, but to iden�fy ongoing issues 
in that office that are affec�ng the ability of the County to track and account for County revenue and 
expenditures in a �mely manner, and also affects the local governments for whom we collect and distribute 
tax funds. With upcoming bond maters, it is impera�ve that these maters be addressed, and ac�ons taken to 
maintain the County's high financial status and the na�onal financial community. 
 
To be clear, this is not an audit where anyone is accused or even suspected of inten�onal wrongdoing Council 
has received informa�on that there have been errors and missteps in regard to the receipt and appropriate 
disbursements of funds provided to the County, both state and local, and desires to obtain the informa�on 
necessary to address the errors and prevent their re-occurrence. 
 
This engagement of The Baird Audit Group is to ensure that all tax receipts are properly received, deposited, 
and recorded and that disbursements related to the tax receipts are appropriate, and to determine that the 
state monies are properly recorded, and disbursements related to these monies are accurately calculated and 
recorded on the County financial records in the �mely manner. 
 
Is the hope that the result of this special audit will be to iden�fy and correct any deficiency that affects the 
financial maters of the County and ensure that the funds of Jasper County ci�zens are treated in a financially 
responsible manner. It is the County Council's duty to oversee this and make sure that office is opera�ng 
efficiently, effec�vely, and transparently and we will see that this job is done. 
  
Possible Return to Execu�ve Session to Con�nue Discussion on Maters Regarding Agenda  
Item II.  There was no need to return to the Execu�ve Session for this mee�ng. For addi�onal  
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
informa�on on this mee�ng please visit our website for this mee�ng’s agenda E-Packet or for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 

 
Adjournment 
 
Mo�on to adjourn:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The mo�on passed and the mee�ng adjourned at 6:11pm. 

 
 

  Respec�ully submited:      
    
        
  _______________________________________ 
  Wanda H. Giles 
  Clerk to Council     ________________________________________   
          L.  Mar�n Sauls IV 

                                                                                              Chairman                             
 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA



	50717f93-52f6-4cf8-84e4-1954719e7964.pdf
	Instructions may also be found at the Jasper County website www.jaspercountysc.gov


